ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE RESOURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
March 16, 2007
3:41 p. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Charlie Huggins, Chair
Senat or Lyda G een

Senator Gary Stevens

Senator Bill W el echowski
Senat or Thonmas WAgoner

VEMBERS ABSENT

Senator Bert Stednman, Vice Chair
Senator Lesil MQuire

COWM TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BILL NO 104
"An  Act relating to the Alaska Gasline Inducenment Act;
establishing the Alaska Gasline |nducenent Act mat chi ng
contribution fund; providing for an Al aska Gasline |nducenent
Act coordi nator; making conform ng anendnents; and providing for
an effective date."

HEARD AND HELD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 104

SHORT TITLE: NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE PROJECT
SPONSOR(s): RULES BY REQUEST OF THE GOVERNCR

03/ 05/ 07 (S) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
03/ 05/ 07 (S) RES, JUD, FIN

03/ 14/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205
03/ 14/ 07 (S) Heard & Hel d

03/ 14/ 07 (S) M NUTE( RES)

03/ 16/ 07 (S) RES AT 3:30 PM BUTROVI CH 205

W TNESS REG STER

Patrick Gal vin, Conm ssioner

Depart nent of Revenue

Juneau, AK

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 104

SENATE RES COW TTEE -1- March 16, 2007



Kevi n Banks, Acting Director

Division of Ol and Gas

Departnent of Natural Resources

Juneau AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrented on SB 104

Marci a Davis, Deputy Conmm ssioner

Depart ment of Revenue

Juneau, AK

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Comrented on SB 104

Donal d Shepl er

Greenberg Traurig, LLP

Consultant to the Legislative Budget and Audit Conmmttee
Juneau AK

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Conmmented on SB 104

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

CHAIR CHARLIE HUGA NS called the Senate Resources Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 3:41:19 PM Present at the call to
order were Senators Welechowski, Geen, Wgoner, Stevens and
Huggi ns.

SB 104- NATURAL GAS Pl PELI NE PROQJECT

CHAI R HUGGE NS announced SB 104 to be up for consideration.

PATRI CK GALVI N, Commi ssioner, Department of Revenue (DOR), said
that he would be giving the second half of his presentation
covering the topics of what the state receives in return for its
i nducenents, evaluation criteria, provisions for predictability,
and the status of the fields on the North Sl ope.

He said that there are three points for addressing in-state use:
a mandated agreenent to include at least five off-take points
within Alaska, distance-sensitive tariffs, and recognition of
t he i mportance of the expansi on provisions.

3:46: 59 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI asked how the provisions w il nake | ow cost
gas avail abl e for Al askans.

KEVIN BANKS, Director, Dwvision of Ol and Gas, Departnent of

Natural Resources (DNR), said that in-state off-take points
allow a gas consuner to pay for just the trip to the off ranp

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 2- March 16, 2007



instead of through the whole pipeline. He explained how the
m | eage-based rate wll be Ilower for those off-taking in
Fai r banks, for exanple.

SENATOR W ELECHOWNSKI asked if that provision differs from the
Stranded Gas Act.

MR. BANKS replied yes; the Stranded Gas Act relied on FERC
mandat ory expansi on regul ati ons.

3:52: 09 PM

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN said he would talk about the criteria that
are going to be used to evaluate proposals. The first is to
determine if an applicant has net the “nust-have” requirenents.
If one is mssing, the proposal wll not be considered. There
are two primary drivers for the project: value to the state and
how nuch noney the project provides, which is based on how
quickly the cash will flow in. The feasibility and work plan of
the project wll also be considered, as well as financial
strength. Cost overrun and cost sharing are also considered.
There’s a nunmber of criteria that deal with the I|ikelihood of
success as well; roadbl ocks need to be identified and
anti ci pat ed.

3:56:25 PM

He explained that for the application process, applications are
received, and there’s a public coment period, although sone
information may wultimately be kept confidential. After the
commi ssioners select a licensee the process wll return to the
| egi sl ature which can approve or reject the decision.

3:57: 36 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if there is a mninum volune of initial
capacity.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N replied no; however, there is a recognition
that capacity is going to be a driving factor in the state’s

received value. In the conparison between proposals, if there's
a |l ow capacity there won't be any conpetition.

3:59:43 PM

SENATOR STEVENS asked for an explanation of |egislative review
and the approval or denial process.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 3- March 16, 2007



COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that legislative reviewis nore of a
stop-gap neasure if a contract is off the mark; it’'s not a
reeval uati on of the applications.

4.:01:14 PM
SENATOR STEVENS asked if the | egislature would have to vote.

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied that if the conmm ssioners nake a
choice that the legislature feels is wong, the legislature can
vote against the contract. The provision wll not put the
| egislature in the position of having to convene.

4:02: 30 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said that whatever decision is nmade is
likely to result in a lawsuit, and asked if |egislative approva
| essens the possibility of a lawsuit or if the approval process
could have limtations.

COW SSIONER  GALVIN replied that having the legislative
capability means an additional sense of state unity that wll
| essen t he possibility of i nterventi on. There  was a
consi deration of how specific the evaluation criteria should be;
the nodel the administration decided upon is simlar to the
process the Departnment of Natural Resources (DNR) uses for oi
and gas |ease sales. The comm ssioners wll weight the criteria
and use their discretion to nmake the best decision for the
state. The applicants will want as nuch specificity as possible,
but there shouldn’t be applications that are sinply a reflection
of the scoring system

4:06:47 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked which system would be nore legally
challengeable in terns of recomendations and |egislative
approval .

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N replied that soneone from the Departnent of
Law coul d best answer the question.

CHAIR HUGEA NS asked how the legislature would treat the
conmmi ssi oners’ findings.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN explained that the findings would be a
conprehensive analysis of criteria against all three projects,

SENATE RES COW TTEE -4- March 16, 2007



and applying the comm ssioners’ judgnent on the likelihood of
success. The structure of the bill is intended to provide the
| egislature with the right to | ook at and approve or negate the
commi ssioners’ decision; it’s not an obligation.

4:10: 53 PM

CHAIR HUGGE NS asked about a scenario wherein one of the three
conmm ssioners chal |l enged the sel ection.

COW SSIONER GALVIN replied if there was a challenge to the
decision there wouldn't be testinony on it. The court would nmake
t he deci sion based on the findings.

4:12: 04 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWNBKI said he would appreciate an eventual
anal ysis on how to make the process as bull et-proof as possible.

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied that that would apply to Chair
Huggi ns’ question as well, and explained that any chall enge nust
be made within 90 days of the |license being issued.

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said that he doesn’'t want to see the
process wrapped up in years of litigation; there should be as
little opportunity to appeal as possible.

4:13: 57 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS noted a 30-day period for the legislature's
approval, and asked if there has been discussion about extending
t hat peri od.

COW SSIONER GALVIN replied yes. The 30-day period was due to
the likelihood that, with shorter sessions, only a quarter of
the year wll be in session; 30 days will be the likely timng
of a special session.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked when the 30-day period would end, assum ng
t he passing of AdQ A

COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that if the bill passes in May 2007,
applications would start to be submitted in July of that year
and woul d become public in the mddle of OCctober, the comment
period would end in Decenber, and the comm ssioners’ decision
woul d cone at the end of January 2008. The whol e process would
cone to the legislative body in about a year.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 5- March 16, 2007



4:16: 33 PM

CHAIR HUGGE NS conmented that the session nmay begin in md-
February, and asked what roadbl ocks for project applicants could
be.

COW SSI ONER GALVI N replied that the applicant will be required
to give a full airing of the entire process and where possible
risk points lie, and how they will be nanaged.

4:18:40 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI asked if a conpany that wasn't awarded a
contract could still apply for a license fromthe FERC

COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied yes; the state is not granting an
exclusive right to build a pipeline, but rather the inducenents.

4:20: 01 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS commented on the anount of steel and other
resources that the pipeline will require, and asked how feasibly
an applicant could neet perfornmnce neasures.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the level of specificity to be
expected from an applicant is an issue; the expectation is that
the applicant wll provide the state with as much information as
possi bl e about their plan and its possible probl ens.

4:22:19 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked what woul d happen if an applicant neets four
of five criteria but varies from what the state wants on the
fifth, and if the state has the flexibility to favor a conpany
that has a better way of ‘skinning the cat’.

COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that in putting together the “nust-
have” requirenents, it was recognized that the objectives were
achi evable and appropriate. The evaluation criteria strike a
bal ance between the primary drivers of the decision and
discretion by the commssioners to use the application
information. There is enough flexibility to allow the commercia
market to be creative in their applications.

CHAIR HUGA NS said that two applications could be fairly simlar
but the one with the deepest pockets would win every tine.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 6- March 16, 2007



He pointed out a provision in the contract where a conpany wth
the financial wherewithal nust start the project in one year.
O herwise, the requirenent is five years. Being able to hit the
ground running, financially, nmeans a nore feasible project.

4:27:18 PM
COMM SSI ONER GALVIN replied in explaining the difference between

the one- and five-year start dates requirenents and said that
it’s a mtter of transport conmtnents and other forns of

credit. The ability to have a non-risky open season 1is
i mportant; a well-prepared conmpany could elimnate the
uncertainty the state feels and increase its |ikelihood of
success. This doesn’t necessarily nean that this conpany will be

the one with the deepest pockets.
4:29: 33 PM

He explained that AG A provides additional royalty and tax
incentives to get conpanies to conmt gas to the pipeline. The
state doesn’'t want to have to ask for nore noney than the
initial conpany’'s projected royalty paynent. In ternms of the
royalty rates, it wll put the leases at a conmmercial
di sadvant age because of the state’'s ability to switch at 90
days’ notice. That provision will take the uncertainty away so
that conpanies don’'t worry about the state unilaterally acting
on its rights under the contract.

CHAI R HUGE NS asked if that provision is inportant.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the royalty rate switching is a
big deal, and explained why it’s good for conmpanies. It also
prevents having to work out uneven rates later in the process.

4:33:38 PM

He said that he woul d be having Deputy Conmi ssioner Marcia Davis
hel p himexplain property tax exenption, and explained that it’'s
a driving force for the producers, and a natter of the state's
ability to provide certainty in fiscal terns once the project
becones profitable. There are constitutional issues wth
providing this |evel of tax certainty; it may not Dbe
constitutional, but the admnistration is working to nmake it so
once the tine cones.

4:37:47 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -7- March 16, 2007



CHAIR HUGA NS asked what the pipeline tineline will be from a
| egal standpoint.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that starting with open season, the
period is ten years. The tax rate in place then will be the rate
paid in the tenth year that gas is flowng. He added that the
provi sion doesn’'t nean tax avoidance; it’s sinply a guarantee
that the open rate tax rate will remain stable.

4:38:16 PM

MARCI A DAVI S, Deputy Conm ssioner, Departnent of Revenue (DOR),
expl ai ned her background in private enterprise managi ng bottom
line issues and as senior counsel to BP. She used her private
business and |egal background to <create the best possible
exenptions within AG A

She explained that the tax exenption is equal to the production
tax obligation mnus the gas production tax obligation that
woul d have been applicable if open season taxes were applied.
The Departnment of Revenue will be required to maintain a side
analysis of different taxation rules if the tax rates change

What ever the tax the |legislature decides on in future years, the
producers will receive an appropriate exenption. The strength of
the provision conmes from the fact that it’'s structured as a
contract; the shipper nust commit to buy capacity on the
pipeline at the first initial open season, and nust agree not to
fight the rolled-in rates that the pipeline conpany wll be
required to submt to the FERC

4:42: 23 PM

SENATOR WAGONER asked if a conpany would |lose its advantage on
the production tax if it violates that agreenment and goes to the
FERC and protests.

M5. DAVIS replied yes. She explained that the value is set for
ten years, which is an average period for Al askan industrial
st andar ds.

4. 43: 53 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWEKI remar ked t hat courts can't make

constitutional rulings, and asked if a conpany would have to
wait until the legislature tried to pass the tax to file a suit.

SENATE RES COW TTEE - 8- March 16, 2007



M5. DAVIS replied that the statute of limtations for chall enges
to the act is three nonths; additional I|egal opinion my be
needed.

SENATOR W ELECHOWSKI said that the matter was one to be taken up
in the judiciary commttee, and it my never even becone an
i ssue.

4:45:54 PM

CHAIR HUGEA NS noted that that the issue would be taken up in the
judiciary commttee.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said that he woul d next | ook at how nmuch gas
is currently available to fill a pipeline. The anmount of gas
needed isn’'t known; it depends on the project. The anount of gas
from the fields can be predicted, though, and thus the idea
pi peline size needed.

He tal ked about major gas reserve fields on the North Sl ope, and
how much gas coul d concei vably be produced from Prudhoe Bay.

4:49: 04 PM

He cited language from a staff report on Prudhoe Bay gas off-
take rates and how the Alaska Gl and Gas Conservation
Comm ssion (AOGCC) has not been asked to look at the issue
cl osel y.

CHAIR HUGA NS interjected that he wants to see that inquiry.

COWMM SSI ONER GALVIN said the admnistration is currently talking
to the AOGCC. A mmjor concern is that if gas isn't being taken
off and sold el sewhere, there will be a negative inpact on |ong-
term oil recovery. Point Thonpson is another area currently in
flux; once it is re-leased there will be explicit provisions and
penal ties for non-performance there. There may need to be a few
years of liquid production before the saleable gas can begin to
be produced. He then tal ked about prospects for new exploration
in the future.

4:55:43 PM

SENATOR W ELECHOWBKI said he has heard comments from Exxon about
their intentions to not participate in the gas-line deal.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -9- March 16, 2007



COW SSIONER  GALVIN said the admnistration has not heard
explicit messages; it is not sure what Exxon's position is.

M5. DAVIS said that in her experience such conpanies are driven
by the need to serve their shareholders; it’'s the state’s job to
establish a franework to allow private enterprise to devel op the
project do it neets the needs of the state as well as the
corporations. The state has been careful not to pre-ordain
commercial outcones in a way that hanpers the process; it wll
anal yze the applications rationally and will ensure that the
process i s superlative.

4:58:39 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked if the Shell Goup is a potential
partici pant in open season.

COM SSIONER GALVIN replied yes, but that conpany’' s primry

target is oil. If they do discover gas while drilling for oil
t hough, they will likely participate in open season.
4:59: 31 PM

CHAIR HUGE NS asked him to answer sonme questions brought up in
t he | ast neeting.

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N said that he would have Don Shepl er, advisor
to the admnistration, help him discuss the difference between
the one- and five-year tine franes after FERC certification. He
clarified that after a conpany gets the certificate they have
one year to begin the project if they have adequate financi al
backing; ideally they would be prepared to act. If they don't,
the state gets all of the project assets. |If a conpany doesn’'t
have credit support, the bill allows up to five years to
assenbl e the appropriate financing.

5:03:36 PM

CHAIR HUGA NS asked where on the project tineline a conpany
woul d receive certification

COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that that depends on the proposa
subnmitted. Application could be done at any point in the five-
year tinme frane.

5:05:12 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -10- March 16, 2007



DON SHEPLER, Greenberg Taurig Consultants, Advisory to the
Adm nistration, said that there is a statutory tineline as to
how long the FERC has to act once it receives a conpleted
application. In reference to the five-year period nentioned by
Conmi ssioner Galvin, he explained that the |icensee would have
obtained the certificate but wouldn’t have firm contracts. The
period would give tinme to put together the commercial elenents
of a deal that have not yet come together. Even in the Lower 48,
pi peline projects do not coal esce i mediately; he gave exanples
of pipelines in the Lower 48 that had issues wth their
timelines. Sone tine after certification is essential depending
on how commerci al arrangenents are made.

5:09: 55 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVIN added that that scenario assunes that no
commtnents are nade at open season. The state, the licensee

and the FERC will be invested in the project; if a nutual
decision is made that it is not economc, the bill wll allow
everyone to walk away. |If the other party doesn't see the

scenario that way and wants to pursue damages, a third party can
be asked to make the determ nation.

5:14:16 PM

MR. SHEPLER said that there is a tineline in statute as to how
long the FERC has to act in the five-year tineline in terns of
whet her the application is conplete.

COW SSIONER GALVIN added that the tineline delineates the
greatest anount of tinme the applicant may have for the process.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked for clarification on the [|anguage of the
bill, and what the tineline wuld be like in a worst-case
scenari o.

5:15:19 PM

COWMM SSI ONER GALVI N answered that it could go up to 12 years.

MR. SHEPLER clarified that that woul d be a worst-case scenari o.
COMW SSIONER GALVIN added that the state wll be active

t hroughout the whole process; even from a worst-case scenario,
t here can be success.

SENATE RES COW TTEE -11- March 16, 2007



CHAIR HUGGA NS said that according to a chart before conmttee
the tinme period would be 24 nonths for certificate issuance.

MR. SHEPLER agr eed.
5:16: 57 PM

CHAI R HUGA NS asked about the likelihood of the state entering a
five-year provision scenario.

COWM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the admnistration hadn't vyet
formally heard from the producers on their viewoint. The
purpose of AGA is to allow commercial participants to identify
how to mnimze the risk of a | onger scenario.

CHAIR HUGEA NS asked if the nost likely event to lead to a five-
year plan would be an unsuccessful open season.

5:18: 19 PM

MR. SHEPLER said that an open season that doesn't fill the
pi peline would be such a scenario. |If the open season fully
subscribes the pipeline and the |icensee doesn’'t nove forward
within a year of receiving the certificate, it would be fair to
take back the certificate and work product for reassignment. It
would not be fair to do so if the licensee doesn’'t have firm
contracts and financial conmm tnments.

CHAIR HUGA NS asked what else besides an wunsuccessful open
season would be a factor in allowing a five-year period.

5:20:49 PM
COM SSI ONER GALVIN replied that the open season is a big dea

and the best opportunity to get the project on firmfooting, but
it may be necessary to have successive open seasons in order to

ultimately fulfill the need for credit support. There needs to
be the opportunity to build forward from the initial open
season. Wthin AGA the biggest risk is that there wll be
unsuccessful open seasons before and after FERC certification.
Hopefully the inducenents wll help with a framework for a
successful initial open season; if not, the open season after
certification will need to be successful.

5:22:03 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -12- March 16, 2007



CHAIR HUGGA NS said that he's heard different comments about how
FERC certification wi thout a successful open season would work;
he asked what the |egal opinion on the nmatter was.

MR. SHEPLER replied that federal statute allows for a FERC
presunption for a pipeline need and downstream takeaway
capacity, and FERC regulations don't require contracts. Even if
a project is certified, the pipeline sponsor will likely not go
forward wi thout project financing and contracts. The FERC woul d
require that the pipeline be considered at-risk if a conpany
built a line for which it didn't have full transport contracts.
The FERC wouldn’t think certification w thout such assets would
be optimal, but legally it 1is obligated to process the
appl i cation.

5:25:29 PM

CHAIR HUGGE NS specul ated on the level of risk such a situation
woul d create, and asked for M. Shepler’s thoughts.

MR. SHEPLER replied that the adm nistration wants a pipeline for
its investnent; part of the price of getting the state's
investment is the conmtnment to file for certification by a
designated date. Legislation also provides that if a certificate
is received the conpany is obligated to accept it. If at the end
of a five-year or shorter period the process is decidedly
failing, that’s one thing; otherwise it should be given tine to
devel op. Once a certificate is filed for, the specificities of
t he project narrow

CHAIR HUGE NS asked how high the risk factor would be in a
t heoretical situation.

MR. SHEPLER replied that a conpany should discuss risk factors
with its board before application. The |egislation requires that
a conpany specify how the state’s noney will be used after an
open season. The issue should be resolved internally and be
reflected in the application.

5:29:36 PM

COW SSI ONER GALVI N added that the incentives total $500 million
because that’s half of the estimated cost of getting a FERC
certificate. The issue of <cost-sharing after open-season is
i nportant; there is a different risk profile after an
unsuccessful season. The state wants to provide enough noney to
get from open season to FERC certification, because at that

SENATE RES COW TTEE -13- March 16, 2007



point there is the greatest |likelihood of success for the
proj ect .

COWM SSI ONER GALVI N expl ai ned who would be presenting at the
next neeting, and asked if the commttee would like to give
notice of questions that would be asked.

CHAIR HUGA NS comrented that he and the conmm ssioner agree that
AG A is nmalleable, and as nmany parties as possible should be
heard from The hearing process is about how to make the bill
and open season as successful as possible; AG A needs to be
ti ghtened up in sonme places.

There being no further business to cone before the commttee, he
adj ourned the neeting at 5:36:26 PM

SENATE RES COW TTEE -14- March 16, 2007



